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The Sandy Spring Historic District (M: 28-11) was recorded on a Maryland Inventory of Historic Places (MIHP) form in 1985 by 
the Montgomery County Historic Preservation Commission. The boundaries for the district follow the property's tax parcels that 
were intact in 1985 and included a number of farms along MD 108 and the small commercial district at the intersection of MD 108 
and Brooke and Meetinghouse roads. The district also included the Sandy Spring Friends Meeting House (M: 28-11-5), which was 
listed on the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) in 1972, the Lyceum, and two large farms on Meetinghouse Road. 
Along Bentley Road, near the eastern end of the district, two historic farms were included within the boundaries. Also within the 
historic district were a number of smaller parcels along MD 108 improved by single-family dwellings. The 1985 MIHP form 
identified twenty-five "historic sites" within the district that were described in full. Within the Sandy Spring Historic District, six 
properties were individually documented on MIHP forms. These include the Sandy Spring Friends Meeting House, Auburn Farm 
(M: 28-11-6), Harewood Farm (M: 28-11-3), the Sandy Spring Service Station (demolished) (M: 28-11-7), and the Sharp Street 
Methodist Church (M: 28-11-4). 

In 1988, the Montgomery County Council approved a small section of the Sandy Spring Historic District as part of the Master Plan 
for Historic Preservation in Montgomery County, Maryland. The Master Plan district boundaries include the Sandy Spring Bank 
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and the Mutual Insurance Company Building (now Montgomery Mutual) on the corner of MD 108 and Meetinghouse Road, the 
Meeting House, and the neighboring Lyceum. Listed as individual resources in the Master Plan are Harewood Farm (17600 
Meetinghouse Road) and the Sandy Spring (at the end of Meetinghouse Road).(l) Montgomery County added the Sharp Street 
Methodist Church to the Master Plan at the time of the 1985 survey. 

In November 1991, the Maryland Historical Trust (MHT) determined after "a careful review of the inventory information for the 
Sandy Spring survey area (M: 28-11 )...the area lacks the cohesiveness necessary for listing as a district."(2) 

The historic district consists roughly of 330 acres. 

HISTORIC CONTEXT 

Although Sandy Spring was beginning to transform from a rural community to a suburb at the time of the 1985 survey, a majority 
of the physical changes have taken place over the last two decades. Historically, Sandy Spring was a rural Quaker community held 
together by a small commercial district. The residential development predates the commercial aspect of the town as Quakers 
settled in the area in the eighteenth century and named the settlement Sandy Spring after a spring located on the nearby Harewood 
Farm. The Quakers built their meetinghouse near the spring. The first structure was constructed of log, which was replaced by a 
wood-frame building in 1753; the present brick meetinghouse was erected in 1817. The commercial area began to develop circa 
1817 with the opening of the Sandy Spring Store. The commercial aspect expanded with the establishment of the Mutual Fire 
Insurance Company in 1857 and the Sandy Spring National Bank in 1868. 

During the 1930s, the population of Montgomery County increased dramatically as President Franklin D. Roosevelt's New Deal 
programs increased the federal work force in the Washington metropolitan area; the population of the county more than doubled 
from 34,921 in 1920 to 83,912 persons by 1940. Along with the increasing popularity of the automobile, the demand for housing 
created new developments in areas of the county not yet improved.(3) As a result, several single-family dwellings, many 
illustrations of the Cape Cod form with Colonial Revival-style detailing, were built in the 1940s and 1950s along MD 108 in Sandy 
Spring. With its close proximity to both Washington, D.C. and Baltimore City, Sandy Spring quickly became a suburb for higher 
income families by the 1980s. Development increased during the 1990s with the creation of a number of upper-income 
subdivisions and commercial buildings around Sandy Spring and nearby Olney. Such development continued into the twenty-first 
century and presently threatens the historic rural character of Sandy Spring. 

DESCRIPTION 

Sandy Spring was settled in the 1720s and construction began soon thereafter. Although no buildings remain from its original 
period of development, Sandy Spring is home to a number of significant properties that reflect its late-eighteenth-, nineteenth-, and 
early-twentieth-century history. These include Harewood Farm (1793), Bloomfield (pre-1806), Sandy Spring Friends Meeting 
House (1817), Auburn Farm (1818), Avalon (1855), the Lyceum (1858-1859), Oakleigh (1882), and the Sharp Street Methodist 
Church (1923), to name a few. Single-family dwellings and commercial buildings dating from the late nineteenth through to the 
mid-twentieth century line Olney-Sandy Spring Road, which runs through the center of the community. Construction of late-
twentieth-century and twenty-first-century housing has also occurred on subdivided portions of the large parcels on which many of 
the historic houses stood. The subdivision of these historic parcels has encouraged suburban development that is not consistent and 
has compromised the setting and location of the historic properties, especially the expansive farms. 

Development on the north side of Olney-Sandy Spring Road, east of Meeting House Road and Brooke Road, includes a number of 
mid-twentieth-century dwellings that, while distracting from the historic context of Sandy Spring, recount mid-century residential 
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construction as it was being experienced nationally. These modest houses reflect the typical 1940s and 1950s residential forms and 
illustrate the then-popular Colonial Revival style, albeit very minimally. The dominate form is the Cape Cod with its one-and-a-
half-story structure covered by a side gable roof with dormers. Representative examples include the houses at 513 Olney-Sandy 
Spring Road (1945), 609 Olney-Sandy Spring Road (1948), and 617 Olney-Sandy Spring Road (1953). The house at 613 Olney-
Sandy Spring Road was built in 1946 and, although it has the basic Cape Cod form, illustrates the Tudor Revival style. The one-
story dwelling is covered in six-course Flemish-bond brick and has a side gable roof of asphalt shingles with an off-set projecting 
front gable. The facade has a half-shouldered exterior-end brick chimney, 6/6 windows, and a single-leaf door sheltered by a metal 
awning. A one-story wood-frame addition and a front deck are located on the east end of the house. A few of the houses from the 
mid-twentieth century fronting the north side of Olney-Sandy Spring Road have been rehabilitated to serve as commercial 
buildings, such as 601 and 605 Olney-Sandy Spring Road and 801 Olney-Sandy Spring Road. 

The south side of Olney-Sandy Spring Road seems to have developed less consistently than the north side, with new construction 
continuing until the late twentieth century. The 1924 house at 802 Olney-Sandy Spring Road is two stories high and covered by a 
side gable roof of standing-seam metal with overhanging eaves. The modest house is just two bays wide with a one-story enclosed 
porch along the facade and a two-story ell on the rear elevation. An example of the Cape Cod form includes the 1942 wood-frame 
dwelling at 616 Olney-Sandy Spring Road. This house is one-and-a-half stories on a parged concrete foundation. Fenestration 
consists of 6/6 windows and two gabled dormers, each with 6/6 windows. The centered single-leaf door has a Colonial Revival-
style door surround with pilasters. A side addition with a shed porch is attached to the west elevation and a one-story garage is 
located on the east elevation. 

One of the older houses fronting on the south side of the street is located at 700 Olney-Sandy Spring Road. Constructed circa 1870, 
the dwelling is two stories high and two bays wide with a rear ell. This wood-frame house has been clad in wood shingles on the 
first story and asphalt shingles on the second story, a popular product of the mid-twentieth century. The main block has a side 
gable roof and the rear ell has a shed roof. An exterior brick chimney is located on the rear elevation. The original windows have 
been replaced with 1/1 vinyl-sash windows with false muntins. An enclosed porch, clad in wood shingles, is located on the east 
elevation and contains the main entrance to the house. A two-story addition is attached to the rear elevation of the ell. 

A small section of what was originally part of Bloomfield was subdivided in the early twentieth century and a narrow road leading 
south off of Bentley Road created in the late 1920s and early 1930s. Subsequently, single-family dwellings like the one-and-a-half-
story dwelling at 18019 Bentley Road (1931) and the one-story wood-frame dwelling at 18015 Bentley Road (1947) were 
constructed. These modest dwellings are similar in form, style, and material to those contemporaneous houses fronting Olney-
Sandy Spring Road. 

Construction of commercial buildings on Olney-Sandy Spring Road had been limited, thus the extant buildings reflect the periods 
in which they were erected. The building at 837 Olney-Sandy Spring Road, for example, was constructed circa 1900. It is a two-
story wood-frame building now obscured by a modern one-story storefront. The wood-frame structure, which is very similar in 
style and materials to contemporaneous residential architecture, is clad in weatherboard with a false mansard roof. A typical 
commercial-style building of the second quarter of the twentieth century is located to the immediate east at 815-825 Olney-Sandy 
Spring Road. Built circa 1935, the two-story building is eight bays wide and appears to have been constructed in two phases, 
subsequently unified by a brick veneered facade. This combination building provides four stores on the first floor and private 
access to the second floor, which may have originally provided two apartments. The building at 805-809 Olney-Sandy Spring 
Road, which was constructed circa 1960, is an example of the enframed window wall commercial structure. Popular in rural 
settings like Sandy Spring, this one-story building form typically lacks a second story and does not provide residential space. The 
building is concrete-block construction capped by a flat roof with metal coping. The three storefronts feature large metal one-light-
fixed windows and single-leaf glass and metal doors. Built circa 1975, the commercial building at 500 Olney-Sandy Spring Road 
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is a one-story wood-frame building. It has a front-gabled roof of corrugated metal and asphalt shingles. The building, which 
attempts to meld with the rural historic setting of Sandy Spring like its 1900 counterpart, is covered in board-and-batten siding. A 
concrete-block building with a front gable roof, which is very common for rural communities in the mid- to late twentieth century, 
is located to the west. 

One property of note that has not been previously documented to any great extent is the Sandy Spring Friends Cemetery. The first 
Quaker burial in Sandy Spring occurred in 1754 at the cemetery, which is located northeast of the original Meeting House.(4) The 
present-day Meeting House, which was constructed in 1817, is also located southwest of the cemetery. The Lyceum, or town hall, 
was constructed in 1857 and flanks the cemetery to the north. Enclosed by a metal fence with square balusters and rock-faced 
concrete-block and brick posts, the cemetery is located on flat tract of land with few mature trees. Mature vegetation is located 
outside the cemetery along the south and east boundaries of the tract. Following Quaker custom, the earliest burials were simple 
and offered a degree of privacy. The dead were buried "one beside another in the order of their passing, in graves designated only 
by rough pieces of fieldstone - unmarked in anyway."(5) Some time around 1852, the burial custom was modified, permitting the 
use of more formal headstones with both the name and date of the deceased. By 1881, family lots were laid out in the Meeting's 
first addition to its property.(6) Corresponding to local history, the earliest marker in the cemetery is dated 1852 and belongs to 
Hannah C. Beirge who was born in 1789. The most recent headstone in the cemetery belongs to Robert Chapman Turner (1913-
2005). The cemetery contains approximately 500 graves organized into three columns that run east to west separated by grass 
paths. Within the columns, the graves are arranged in rows. The gravestones are simple, consisting entirely of tablets and flush 
markers, with some footstones. 

TWENTIEITH- AND TWENTY-FIRST-CENTURY DEVELOPMENT AND ALTERATIONS 

Many of the historic houses of Sandy Spring have experienced alterations and been enlarged by additions. The alterations were 
substantial historically and included side additions, non-original rear ells, and/or porches (both as additions and the enclosure of 
original porches). Generally, these alterations have since gained significance within the contexts of the individual properties and 
sometimes within that of the larger Sandy Spring Historic District. Additions and alterations in the mid- to late twentieth century 
have been notably minimal and have not for the most part compromised the integrity of the resources, their property, or the 
community. The main house at Bloomfield is an excellent example of how alterations and additions have achieved significance. 
The building was built in several different phases; the earliest portion is believed to be pre-1806 (some sources cite a circa 1790 
date). It was enlarged circa 1838, circa 1870, 1885-1886, and finally in circa 1950. The full-height porch on the main house, 
constructed circa 1920, was removed in 2007. The roof of the historic log springhouse has collapsed due to damage inflicted by 
Hurricane Isabel (2003) and the structure has deteriorated because of its exposure to the elements. 

Auburn Farm is an example of how the losses of associated outbuildings and sizable acreage have affected the setting and location 
of an historic property. The property consists of the 1818 main house with notable two-story addition, an early-nineteenth-century 
bank barn, a circa 1930 barn, and a small nineteenth-century outbuilding. Circa 2004, an eastern section of the Auburn parcel was 
subdivided and sold for suburban development. As a result, the stone smokehouse and dairy were demolished and the historic 
viewshed of this property has been compromised by subdivision. 

In the twentieth century, historic buildings that housed significant local institutions like the Montgomery Mutual Fire Insurance 
Company (now Montgomery Mutual) were replaced by larger, more up-to-date buildings. Located at 900 Olney-Sandy Spring 
Road, the original Montgomery Mutual Building was constructed on property purchased by the company in 1857. It was a one-
story stone building with a gable roof and interior chimney. The present building replaced the original structure in 1904. This 
Colonial Revival-style building was enlarged in 1934 on the south elevation and on the east elevation in 1960. The building is now 
isolated by paved parking lots, which speaks of the effects the automobile has had on Sandy Spring. The much-enlarged building, 
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now referred to as the Edward Stabler Building, is now leased as office space and no longer has an association with Montgomery 
Mutual. 

Another example is the Sandy Spring Fire Department, which constructed its first fire station at 804 Olney-Sandy Spring Road in 
1930. The building was expanded in 1950 with the construction of a two-and-a-half-story addition on the west elevation. About 
2001-2002, the fire department moved to a newly constructed firehouse on east side of Brooke Road.(7) After the relocation, the 
old fire station was rehabilitated for use as commercial space. Large one-light fixed metal storefront windows and glass-and-metal 
doors replaced the large roll-up vehicular doors on the main elevation. In 2007, the building housed three commercial businesses. 
The changes to the fire station are minor, but do affect its integrity of design, materials, feeling, and association as it no longer 
reads as a firehouse. 

New construction includes the new Sandy Spring Museum, which began with a groundbreaking ceremony on September 24, 1996. 
The museum is located on the northeast coiner of the intersection of Olney-Sandy Spring Road and Bentley Road. The property 
contains the exhibit hall with several projecting wings and an agricultural building, which are arranged to form a central courtyard. 
The octagonal wing is known as the Dr. Bird Meeting Room and the southern wing is the Farquhar Gallery. In 2006, a library wing 
was added to the museum and was dedicated on April 29, 2007. A freestanding barn is located northwest of the museum along 
Bentley Road. Although a museum honoring the history and residents of Sandy Spring, the building is modern and does not reflect 
the historic context of the Quaker community. 

Since the 1985 survey, the low-income housing development known as Sandy Spring Meadow was completed on the north side of 
MD 108 between Brooke Road and Bentley Road. This mixed-use development consists of thirty new single-family houses and 
six groups of multi-family rowhouses fronting cul-de-sacs. In addition, a single-family housing subdivision, known as Auburn 
Village, was developed on the south side of MD 108 circa 2000. Reached by Auburn Village Road, which runs through the 
property historically associated with Roadside, the subdivision consists of twenty exceptionally large single-family dwellings set 

•

around two cul-de-sacs. This new subdivision is located to the northeast of Auburn Farm (17617 Meeting House Road) and 
Harewood Farm (17600 Meeting House Road). Another subdivision has been created on the northern part of what was historically 
part of The Cedars (1601 Olney-Sandy Spring Road). Known as Meadowsweet, the subdivision is accessible from Brooke Road. It 
includes thirty-one large single-family houses constructed circa 2006. The new subdivision is set just north of the Sherwood 
Elementary School, which fronts Olney-Sandy Spring Road. 

DEMOLISHED BUILDINGS 

Three dwellings have been demolished in the Sandy Spring Historic District since the 1985 survey: Roadside (604 Olney-Sandy 
Spring Road) and two nineteenth-century vernacular dwellings at 800 Olney-Sandy Spring Road and 704 Olney-Sandy Spring 
Road. In 1991, MHT determined that Roadside was not individually eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places 
and it was subsequently demolished. A circa 2006 subdivision comprised of nine large single-family dwellings currently stands on 
the site of Roadside and its neighboring parcel. A new road, Auburn Village Road, was constructed along the western boundary of 
the Roadside parcel. This road extends southward through the new subdivision, leading to twenty exceptionally large single-family 
dwellings set around the two cul-de-sacs forming the Auburn Village subdivision. The now-vacant property at 800 Sandy Spring 
Road was first covered in gravel but has since been paved for use as a parking lot for the commercial buildings at 804-816 Olney-
Sandy Spring Road. The property at 704 Olney-Sandy Spring Road remains an empty lot covered in grass. 

One notable commercial building within the Sandy Spring Historic District has been demolished since the 1985 survey. The 
Phillips 66 service station at 501 Olney-Sandy Spring Road was replaced by an imposing three-story building in 1995.(8) The new 
building, also a service station, is concrete block with a stretcher-bond brick veneer and a shallow hipped roof covered in asphalt 
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